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Annual Report of Holding Companies—FR Y-6

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844 (c)(1)(A)); Section 8(a)
of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. § 3106(a)); Sections
11(a)(1), 25 and 25A of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.S.C.
§§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); Section 211.13(c) of Regulation K
(12 C.F.R. § 211.13(c)); and Section 225.5(b) of Regulation Y (12
C.F.R. § 225.5(b)) and section 10(c)(2)(H) of the Home Owners'
Loan Act. Return to the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the
original and the number of copies specified.

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies and top-tier savings and loan holding companies organized
under U.S. law, and by any foreign banking organization that
does not meet the requirements of and is not treated as a qualify-
ing foreign banking organization under Section 211.23 of
Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 211.23). (See page one of the general
instructions for more detail of who must file.) The Federal
Reserve may not conduct or sponsor, and an organization (or a
person) is not required to respond to, an information collection
unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed
by one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual
should also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In
the event that the top-tier holding company does not have an
individual who is a senior official and is also a director, the chair-
man of the board must sign the report.

I, Randy Harris
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

Director & President & CEO

Title of the Holding Company Director and Official
attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information," 12 C.F.R. Part 261,
that the Reporter and individual consent to public release of all
details in the report copcernjng that individual.

/

Signature of Holdrﬁg Cémpany Director and Official
08/18/2016

Date of Signature

For holding companies not registered with the SEC—
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

is included with the FR Y-6 report

[J will be sent under separate cover

[ is not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSD ID
C.l.

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):
December 31, 2015
Month / Day / Year

None
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address
Clovis Bancshares Inc.

Legal Title of Holding Company

300 Main Street

(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

Clovis NM 88101
City State Zip Code
N/A

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:

Jennifer Whitlock Secretary
Name Title
5757699000

Area Code / Phone Number / Extension
5757690050

Area Code / FAX Number

jwhitlock@bankofclovis.com
E-mail Address

www.bankofclovis.com
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Does the reporter request confidential treatment for any portion of this
submission?

[Jves Please identify the report items to which this request applies:

In accordance with the instructions on pages GEN-2

and 3, a letter justifying the request is being provided.
The information for which confidential treatment is sought
is being submitted separately labeled "Confidential."

No

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.25 hours per response, including time to gather and
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551, and to the

Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington, DC 20503.

12/2015
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Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

FRY-6

OMB Number 7100-0297

Approval expires September 30, 2018
Page 1 of 2

Annual Report of Holding Companies—FR Y

GCEIVE]

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844 (c)(1)(A)); Section 8(a)
of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. § 3106(a)), Sections
11(a)(1), 25 and 25A of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.S.C.
§§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); Section 211.13(c) of Regulation K
(12 C.F.R. § 211.13(c)); and Section 225.5(b) of Regulation Y (12
C.F.R. § 225.5(b)) and section 10(c)(2)(H) of the Home Owners'
Loan Act. Return to the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the
original and the number of copies specified.

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier barik holding compa-
nies and top-tier savings and loan holding €ompanies organized
under U.S. law, and by any foreign barking organization that
does not meet the requirements of and4§ not treated as a qualify-
ing foreign banking organization /under Section 211.23 of
Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 211.23)¢(See page one of the general
instructions for more detail who must file.) The Federal
Reserve may not conduct or,Sponsor, and an organization (or a
person) is not required to réspond to, an information collection
unless it displays a curreptly valid OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed
by one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual
should also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In
the event that the top-tier holding company does not have an
individual who is a senior official and is also a director, the chair-
man of the board must sign the report.

I, Randy Harris
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

Director & President & CEO

Title of the Holding Company Director and Official
attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pr
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Fedefal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contaiped in this
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to/provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter/also certifies
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individugl, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absefice of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in accordadce with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Availability of Informatign," 12 C.F.R. Part 261,
that the Reporter and individual consenf to public release of all

details in the report concerpihg that indii

Signaturepﬂﬁ:ling Cc’:mpany Director apfd Official
03/21/2016

Date of Signature /

For holding companies pot registered with the SEC—
Indicate status of Annua)/Report to Shareholders:

is included with thé FR Y-6 report

[J will be sent ungér separate cover

[ is not prepargd

Z

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RsgDID D 7_')01%?)7

G

Date of Report (top-Aier holding company's fiscal year-end):
December 31,2015

Month / Day / \7

gal Title of Holding Company

300 Main Street
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

Clovis NM
City State

88101
Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:

Jennifer Whitlock Secretary
Name Title
5757699000

Area Code / Phone Number / Extension
5757690050

Area Code / FAX Number

jwhitlock@bankofclovis.com
E-mail Address

www.bankofclovis.com
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Does the reporter request confidential treatment for any portion of this
submission?

D Yes Please identify the report items to which this request applies:

D In accordance with the instructions on pages GEN-2
and 3, a letter justifying the request is being provided.
The information for which confidential treatment is sought
is being submitted separately labeled "Confidential."

No

Publigreporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.25 hours per response, including time to gather and
maigftain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551, and to the

Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington, DC 20503.

12/2015
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Board Member
Board Member
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Secretary



R, Kelly McHarland |
@ertified Public Accmmtant CPA)

314 South 2nd Street *+ Post Office Box 1044 « Tucumcari, New Mexico 88401
Voice (575) 461-1195 « Fax (575) 461-1198 « Web: www.mcfarlandcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Clovis, New Mexico

| have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Clovis
Bancshares, Inc. and its bank subsidiary as of December 31, 2015, and 2014, and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity,
comprehensive income, cash flows, related notes to the financial statements, and
Schedules | through IV for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, | express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

A Professional Corporation America Counts on CPAs®




accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Clovis Bancshares, Inc. and
its bank subsidiary as of December 31, 2015, and 2014, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Information of Book Value
per Share on page 57 is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not part
of the basic consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.

A X ets, 2y Fondarl
Certified Public Accountant

March 10, 2016



Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2015, and 2014

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks (Note 1)

Fed funds sold
Total cash and cash equivalents

Held-to-maturity investment securities at amortized
cost (Fair Value for 2015 of $16,798,289 and 2014 of
$16,811,086)

Available-for-sale investment securities (amortized
cost of $81,995,983 in 2015 and of $55,162,545 in 2014)
(Note 1, 4)

Total investment securities

Loans, net of general loan loss allowance of $1,797,919 in
2015 and $1,209,988 in 2014 (Note 1,3)

Premises and equipment, net (Note 1, 2)

Accrued interest receivable

Federal Home Loan Stock

Prepaid federal and state income tax

Deferred tax asset (Note 9)

Repossessed assets and foreclosed real estate (Note 1, 3)
Cash value of life insurance (Note 20)

SBA loan guarantee receivable

Other assets

Total Assets

See Notes 5 and 6 for pledges of assets.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

59,339,871

0

59,339,871

16,774,744

__ 56,109,863

72,884,607

87,956,456
2,034,796
825,040
75,100

0

110,229
2,004
4,935,187

0

625,846

228,789,136




Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2015, and 2014

N
(=]
=
N

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities

Deposits (Note 1,5) $ 184,352,902

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 21,080,975

Other liabilities 279,649

Escrow payable 4,817

Accrued income taxes payable 251,183

Post retirement benefit obligation 476,975
Total Liabilities 206,446,501

Stockholders' Equity

Common StOCk, $4.50 par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized and

807,454 shares issued: 75,613 shares held in treasury in 2015; 731,841

shares outstanding in 2015; and 50,177 shares are held in treasury in

2014; 757,277 shares outstanding in 2014. 3,633,543

Additional paid-in capital 8,728,981

Treasury Stock, at cost (1,168,846)

Retained earnings 10,578,482

Accumulated other comprehensive income 570,475
Total Stockholders' Equity 22,342,635

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

$ 228789136

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Income
December 31, 2015, and 2014

2014

Net interest income 6,014,021
Provision for loan losses (375,000)

Net interest income, after provision for loan losses 5,639,021
Noninterest income * 1,314,095
Noninterest expense * 4,882,611
Income before income taxes 2,070,505
Current income taxes (Note 9) (647,613)
Deferred income taxes (Note 9) 233,481

Net current and deferred income taxes (414,132)
Net income (loss) 1,656,373
Earnings per share (Note 25)

Basic 2.18

Diluted 2.16

* For additional detail see Schedules I, II, Ill and IV

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2015, and 2014

Net income

2014

1,656,373

Net unrealized holding gains (loss) on securities arising
during the year

Reclassification adjustments included in net income

374,058

(173,269)

Other comprehensive income (loss) before deferred income tax
(benefit)

Deferred income tax benefit (expense)

200,789

(82,535)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of deferred income tax
benefit

118,254

Comprehensive income

1,774,627

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc. I
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ‘
December 31, 2015, and 2014
2014
Cash flows from operating activities: ‘
Net income (loss) $ 1,656,373 h
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 205,356 I
Amortization and accretion of premiums/discounts on securities, net 510,874 |
Increase (decrease) in income taxes currently payable and deferred income taxes 26,298 |
(Increase) decrease in cash value of life insurance (157,240)
Stock option compensation 15,190
(Gain) loss on sale of OREO 0 |
(Gain) loss on sale of securities (288,301) ‘
Net change in:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 29,752
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 12,505 |
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (65,063) ;
Increase in employee supplemental executive retirement plan payable 322,750
Increase (decrease) in insurance proceeds for hail damage (96,786)
(Increase) decrease in recoverable service provider cost (net) (486,960)
(Increase) decrease in other assets (99,852)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 13,982
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,598,878 I
|
Cash flows from investing activities: |
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank Stock (75,100)
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (19,581,270)
Proceeds from calls and maturities of available-for-sale securities 1,330,000
Proceeds from repayments of available-for-sale securities 8,360,105
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 6,051,210
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities 75,000
Loan originations, net of principal collections (87,674)
Recoveries of loan losses 101,503
Proceeds from sale of repossessed assets and OREO 446,042
Purchases of building, premises, equipment and land (110,904)
|
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (3,491,088) ; :
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 9 E



Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2015, and 2014

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreement to repurchase
Payment of cash dividends
Acquisition of treasury stock
Increase (decrease) in escrow payable
Payments on loan on purchase of building
Sale of treasury stock

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplementary cash flow information:
Cash paid for:
Interest on deposits and borrowed funds
Income taxes
Noncash transactions:
Other real estate owned

Repossessed assets (net repossessions)
SBA loan guarantee receivable

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

38,216,378
1,519,684
(418,822)
(109,642)
(204,445)
(7,206)
40,890

39,036,837

37,144,627

22,195,244

59,339,871

1,115,012

396,440

178,631
0
0

10



Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization. Clovis Bancshares, Inc., a one bank holding company, is the sole
shareholder of The Bank of Clovis, an independent community bank, which began operations
on October 16, 2000. The Company provides a variety of banking services to individuals,
small businesses and agricultural enterprises concentrated in the local community through its
two locations in Clovis, New Mexico. The Company’s deposit products include checking,
savings, IRA’s and certificates of deposits. Lending products include consumer, business,
real estate and agricultural loans. The Company also provides investment services through a
separate department. The trust services were terminated in 2015.

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Clovis Bancshares, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America and general practices of community
banks. The more significant accounting policies are summarized below.

Use of Estimates. In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as
of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the
allowance for loan losses. Management uses information as it becomes available to assess
the likelihood of loan losses. In addition, regulatory agencies periodically review the
allowance and may require further additions to the allowance.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk. Most of the Company’s activities
are with customers located within the Clovis, New Mexico area. The types of securities which
the Company invests are reflected in Note 4 and the types of lending which the Company
underwrites are reflected in Note 3. The Company policy is to diversify both the types of
investments and loans as well as maturities to avoid concentrations in any one type of
financial instrument.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash and balances due from banks and federal funds sold, all
with original maturities when purchased of three months or less. Deposit accounts in other
financial institutions, other than Fed Funds, amounting to $4,027,002 and $3,818,809 at
December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively, are held in non-interest bearing accounts that do

not require compensating balances. Investments in interest bearing deposits in other banks |

are separately classified and are carried at cost, of which there were none in 2015 and none in
2014. The Company had $7,704,180 and $54,875,762 of interest bearing deposits in the
Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas at December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively. The
Company had $4,163 and $45 of interest bearing deposits in the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Dallas at December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively. There were $300,000 invested in Fed
Funds at December 31, 2015, and none at December 31, 2014.

11




Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

The Federal Reserve Bank is the Central Bank of the United States and provides
banking services to banks. Deposits with the Federal Reserve are implicitly guaranteed as
are deposits to the Federal Home Loan Bank.

Noninterest and interest bearing transaction accounts in other financial institutions of
$250,000 are guaranteed by the FDIC. Total deposits in other financial institutions of
$3,377,002 are not insured by the FDIC in 2015 and $3,168,854 in 2014.

Fed Funds are considered debt and are not covered by FDIC insurance.

Securities. The Company classifies as available-for-sale investments in debt
securities that it intends to hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessarily until
maturity. These securities are carried at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses are
reported in an amount, net of tax effects, in other comprehensive income and are excluded
from earnings. (See Note 4)

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the
interest method over the maturity or expected maturity for which prepayments are probable
and can be reasonably estimated.

The estimated fair value of securities is discussed in Note 15. Declines in value of
securities that are considered other than temporary are recorded in noninterest income as a
loss on securities, of which there were none in 2015 and 2014. Realized gains and losses, as
well as reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings, are
recorded in noninterest income using the specific identification method.

Securities classified as held-to-maturity are debt securities that the Company has the
ability and the positive intent to hold until maturity. These securities are recorded at amortized
cost. Sales of held-to-maturity securities within three months of maturity are treated as if held
to maturity.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. As a member of the FHLB system, the Company
maintains a required level of investment in FHLB stock. Because ownership of the stock is
restricted to member institutions, it lacks marketability. The stock may only be sold back at
par to the FHLB or another institution. The carrying value of the FHLB stock is at cost.
Regulations of the FHLB require member institutions to purchase minimum levels of stock.
The most recent regulatory computation established the minimum stock level at $91,400.

Loans. The Company grants real estate, agricultural, business and consumer loans to
customers. The ability of the Company’s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent, in part,
upon the real estate or other collateral, borrower cash flows, and general economic conditions
in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or
until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances
adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees or costs on
originated loans. Interest income is accrued and reported as income on the unpaid principal
balance.

A loan is considered past due for all loan classes when contractual payments of
principal and/or interest are not timely paid.

12




Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Loans (continued)

Certain loan origination fees, net of underwriting costs, are deferred and amortized to
interest income using the interest method over the contractual life of the loan.

Nonaccrual Loans

A loan is classified as nonaccrual (for all loan classes) when it becomes 90 days or
more past due, unless the loan is both well secured and in the process of collection, or earlier
if management determines full payment of principal or interest is not expected. All interest
income accrued is reversed by charging interest income and crediting accrued interest
receivable. All payments collected while the loan is on nonaccrual status are credited to loan
principal. Accrual of interest on such loans is resumed when: 1) principal and interest are no
longer due and are fully paid; 2) there is a sustained period of timely payment performance; 3)
when reasonable doubt no longer exists as to the borrower’s ability to meet future contractual
obligations; or 4) the loan becomes both well secured and in the process of collection.

Impaired loans in which management has determined cash flows are sufficient to
continue making timely payments of interest and have proven the ability to pay interest when
due may not be placed on nonaccrual.

Troubled Debt Restructuring

Troubled debt restructuring occurs when the Company elects to modify the
contractual terms of a loan to provide for a reduction of either interest or principal as a result of
the deterioration of the financial condition of the borrower. Concessions granted by the
Company would not otherwise be considered except for the financial difficulties of the
borrower. A loan is no longer reported as a troubled debt restructuring when the interest rate
is consistent with market rates at the time of restructure, the loan is in compliance with the
modified terms for a reasonable period of time, and the loan is on accrual status.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is established as losses
are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan
losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a
loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

Consumer loans are typically charged-off no later than 60 days past due. Other
secured loans are charged-off or partially charged-off when the fair value of the loan collateral
no longer supports the amount of the loan and in the judgment of management, cash flows are
insufficient to timely pay scheduled loan payments.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated monthly by management and is based on
management’s periodic review of the collectability of the loans. Management selects certain
loans considering the size, internal grade of loan, industry and payment status for a loan-by-
loan analysis for possible impairment pursuant to Financial Accounting Standard ASC 310. All
other loans, including loans individually evaluated for impairment, determined not to be
impaired under Financial Accounting Standard ASC 310, are included in groups of loans with
similar risk characteristics and evaluated for loss pursuant to Financial Accounting Standard
ASC 450 based on historical losses for the previous 2 years.

13




Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loans (continued)

Allowance for Loan Losses (continued)

Additionally, in developing the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses,
management considers other factors to include: trends in classified loans, past due and
nonaccrual loans as well as charged-off loans, local economic conditions to include the
moisture conditions and federal crop insurance on the agriculture economy and the impact of
economic and local housing market, and, finally the effect of growth in the loan portfolio, as
well as, loan administration policies and regulatory examinations.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or
interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral
value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not
classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and
payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances
surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the
delay, the borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for all loans by
either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price or, most typically, the fair value of the
collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent.

Management is of the opinion that the present allowance is sufficient to absorb
reasonably foreseeable loan losses. Determination of the allowance is inherently subjective
and is susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. Additionally,
the Company'’s regulator may require additions to the allowance as a part of the examination

process.

Financial Instruments. Credit related financial instruments - In the ordinary course
of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit including business
letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

The Company does not presently invest in derivative financial instruments to include
hedges, swaps and option contracts or futures contracts; however, the Company does invest
in certain derivative instruments in which the underlying securities are mortgage-backed
securities guaranteed by U.S. Government Agencies.

Banking Premises and Equipment. Land is carried at cost. Buildings and
equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation computed on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Buildings and improvements have a
range of estimated useful lives from 15 to 39 years, furniture, fixtures and equipment have a
range of estimated useful lives from 5 to 7 years, and software and computer equipment have
a range of estimated useful lives from 3 to 5 years.
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1"Sﬁﬁ1imary of Signkifica'rit Accounting Policies (continuéd)

Deposits. Management recommends interest rate changes to the investment
committee of the Board of Directors. Management bases the decision of changes on
nationally published rates, the local economy and the competitive environment.

Income Taxes. Provisions for currently payable income taxes are provided based on
taxable income of the current year. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or
liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book
and tax basis of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition
to changes in tax rates and laws.

Other Taxes. The Company records the New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax, a revenue
based tax, as an expense, rather than netting against revenue.

Foreclosed and Repossessed Assets. Repossessed assets include personal
property carried at fair value less costs to sell at the date of repossession. Subsequent to
repossession, management periodically evaluates the property and adjusts its' value, if
necessary, to reflect declines in value. Repossessed assets are written down to 75% of
wholesale value which management has determined approximates fair value less cost to sell.
The Company had no repossessed assets at December 31, 2015, and $2,004 at December
31, 2014. The Company did not have an allowance for repossessed assets for either year.

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans results when property collateralizing a loan
is foreclosed upon or received in lieu of foreclosure for satisfaction of debt. Real estate
acquired in settlement of loans is recorded at fair value of the assets received at the time of
acquisition less estimated costs to sell, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to
acquisition, management carries the real estate at the lower of cost or fair value less
estimated cost to sell. Management provides an allowance for losses by a charge to
operations based on the valuation of individual properties. Losses realized on sales are
charged against earnings when sold. Gains from sales are recognized only when the criteria
of Financial Accounting Standard ASC 360, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate" is met. The
Company's intent is to hold such real estate for sale. The Company had acquired real estate
in the amount of $663,962 at December 31, 2015, and none at December 31, 2014. The
Company did not have an allowance for acquired real estate at December 31, 2015, or at
December 31, 2014.

Comprehensive Income. Accounting principles generally require that recognized
revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income. In addition to net income,
other components of comprehensive income, such as unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the
balance sheet. Such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive
income.

Earnings-Per-Share. The Company has voluntarily elected to report earnings-per-
share which is not required for non-public companies. Basic earnings-per-share excludes
dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings-
per-share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if employee stock options were
exercised. Diluted earnings-per-share is computed by dividing net income by the total
weighted-average number of shares outstanding plus the effect of outstanding employee stock
options.
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 Premises and Equipment

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment is
presented below.

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2015, and 2014, was
$205,177 and $205,356, respectively.

2015 2014
Building $ 2,025,576 $ 2,013,229
Furniture and Equipment 991,448 952,238
Software 329,597 304,971
Land 171,534 171,534
3,618,155 3,441,972
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,612,354) (1,407,176)

$ 1,905,801 $ 2,034,796
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3 Loans

The schedule presented below reflects the type of loans extended to the Company’s

customers.

Real Estate Loans

Real estate — construction residential 1-4

Real estate — construction other

Real estate — farm land

Real estate — residential 1-4

Real estate — residential 1-4, lines of credit

Real estate — residential 1-4, junior lien

Real estate — residential, 5 or more

Real estate — non-farm, non-residential

Real estate — non-farm, non-residential government
guarantee

Real estate — non-farm, non-residential other

Real estate — non-farm, non-residential other government
guarantee

Total Real Estate Loans

Agriculture Loans

Loans to Finance Ag Production
Total Agriculture Loans

Commercial Loans

Commercial loans
Commercial loans - government guarantee

Total Commercial Loans

Consumer Loans

Consumer
Consumer, line of credit
Overdraft protection

Total Consumer Loans

Total Loans, gross

Overdrafts

Deferred loan fees
Unposted items
Allowance for loan losses

Total Loans, net

2015 201
1,977,853 $ 2,100,273
1,359,596 1,893,104
4,013,510 2,940,754
10,937,802 10,767,730
1,993,322 2,136,478
243,813 291,218
529,782 562,578
3,859,747 4,277,111
8,226,997 9,597,253
3,785,154 3,209,855
11,131,557 11,456,959
48,059,133 49,233,313
12,695,810 11,327,653
12,695,810 11,327,653
19,300,073 17,868,881
3,314,056 4,501,341
22,614,129 22,370,222
6,650,139 5,973,766
6,500 8,221
26,287 30,827
6,682,926 6,012,814
90,051,998 88,944,002
6,555 64,135
(56,474) (56,213

0 214,520
(1,797,919) (1,209,988

88,204,160 $ 87,956,456
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3 Loans (éar’itinued)

The Company periodically sells loan participations to other financial institutions at par,
which is considered fair value at the time. Servicing charges, if any, to the purchaser, do not
exceed the cost of servicing. Gains or losses on the sale of participations or servicing assets
of liabilities are not recorded as such amounts would not be material to the financial
statements. The Company serviced one loan participated to others sold in the amount of
$3,259,218 in 2015 and $3,341,732 in 2014.

Past Due Loans
The following table presents an age analysis of past due loans.

Age Analysis of past due loans by loan class

Past Due
90 days or
Loan class Current 30-89 days more Total
2015
Real Estate $47,805,656 $ 253,477 $ 0 $ 48,059,133
Agricultural 12,562,798 133,012 0 12,695,810
Commercial 22,329,079 0 285,050 22,614,129
Consumer 6,633,693 49,233 0 6,682,926
$89,331,226 $ 435,722 $ 285,050 $ 90,051,998
2014
Real Estate = $48,162,983 $ 380,397 $ 689,933 $ 49,233,313
Agricultural 11,193,514 134,139 0 11,327,653
Commercial 22,061,409 308,813 0 22,370,222
Consumer 5,923,369 89,445 0 6,012,814

$87,341,275 $ 912,794 $ 689,933 $ 88,944,002

A loan is past due if loan payments are not timely paid on the contractual due date.
Borrowers are sent a notice after 10 days delinquency and another notice after 20 days
delinquency. Telephone contact is made no later than 30 days after a loan becomes past
due. Loans 30 days past due are reported to the Board of Directors. For real estate loans,
the Board may institute foreclosure proceedings after 90 days past due if determined
necessary.
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3 Loans (continued)
Nonaccrual loans by loan class are as follows:

Loans on non-accrual by loan class

Loans past
due 90 days
Loan class Non-accrual or more
2015
Real Estate $ 0 $ 0
Agricultural 0 0
Commercial 285,050 285,050
Consumer 0 0
$ 285,050 $ 285,050
2014
Real Estate $ 689,933 $ 689,933
Agricultural 0 0
Commercial 285,050 0
Consumer 0 0

$ 974,983 $ 689,933

Interest not collected on nonaccrual loans was $132,407 and $75,994 at December
31, 2015, and 2014, respectively. Interest income has not been recognized on these loans.

Loan Origination/Risk Management

Management has adopted lending policies and procedures designed to provide for
lending to borrowers within an acceptable level of risk. The Board of Directors approves and
reviews policy revisions on a regular basis. The Company maintains a reporting system to
provide frequent reports of loan delinquencies, loan quality, concentrations of credit and non-
performing loans.

Management regularly reviews and classifies loans by quality. Additionally, the
Company engages an independent loan review firm to evaluate management’s quality ratings
and lending processes which is reported to the Board of Directors.

Management considers the relevant risk characteristics of each segment of the loan
portfolio in estimating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The Company’s loan
underwriting and monitoring polices are designed to mitigate the significant risks. The major
risk characteristics of the loan portfolio segments are as follows:

Real Estate — These loans include construction loans, residential mortgages, as well
as guaranteed loans and certain other real estate. Management considers the major risks as
timely completion of the construction project as budgeted, declines in value of real estate
resulting from lack of market demand and continued employment of the residential borrower.
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Note 3 Loans (continued)
Loan Origination/Risk Management (continued)

Agriculture Loans — Major risks include weather related risks to crops and livestock
and commodity market volatility.

Commercial Loans — Management considers the ability of the commercial borrower to
operate profitability and prudently to generate projected cash flows to repay obligations as
agreed. Cash flows of the borrower are the primary source of repayment for commercial loans
with secondary collateral, the value of the real estate or other collateral. Major risks are,
therefore, the continued cash flows of the borrowers.

Consumer Loans — The Company employs credit scores by national credit rating
agencies and other factors (debt to income, loan to collateral value) to evaluate risk in
consumer loans. Other major risks evaluated are declines in the value of the security of the
loans at a faster rate than the borrower repayments, as well as, continued employment of the
borrower.

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company follows regulatory guidelines in classifying the quality of the loan
portfolio on a monthly basis. Loans classified as “pass” are of satisfactory quality; “special
mention” loans have a potential weakness or risk that may result in deterioration of future
repayment if left uncorrected; “substandard loans” are inadequately protected by the current
sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower or by collateral pledged and have a well-
defined weakness that the Company will sustain some loss if uncorrected; “doubtful loans”
have all the weaknesses of substandard loans with added characteristics that make collection
or liquidation in full highly questionable and improbable. Management evaluates the quality of
its loan portfolio on a monthly basis in conjunction with consideration of the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses.

The evaluation of the loan portfolio by loan class is as follows (see Note 1 for criteria
used by management employees in measuring loans for possible impairment):

2015 Total Real Estate Agriculture Commercial Consumer

Loans individually
evaluated for
impairment $ 6,817,919 $1,915,007 $3,566,794 $ 1,299,166 $ 36,952

Allowance for loan

losses allocated
based on evaluation $ 1,692,000 $ 190,839 $1,196,000 $ 290,161 $ 15,000

2014

Loans individually
evaluated for
impairment $ 8,003,595 $2,715743 $ 953,047 $ 4273632 $ 61,173

Allowance for loan
losses allocated
based on evaluation $ 550,000 $ 70,000 $ 20,000 $ 435000 $ 25,000
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Note 3 Loans (continued)

Credit Quality Indicators (continued)

The following table presents loan quality by loan class.

Loan quality by loan class

Special
Loan class Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total
2015
Real Estate 45,069,689 $ 775471 $ 2,213,973 $ 0 $48,059,133
Agricultural 7,125,125 1,965,378 3,605,307 0 12,695,810
Commercial 18,791,493 2,249,943 1,572,693 0 22,614,129
Consumer 6,620,043 15,031 47,852 0 6,682,926
77,606,350 $ 5,005,823 $ 7,439,825 $ 0 $90,051,998
2014
Real Estate 46,517,570 $ 739,671 $ 1,976,072 $ 0 $49,233,313
Agricultural 10,374,606 911,469 41,578 0 11,327,653
Commercial 18,096,590 2,271,875 2,001,757 0 22,370,222
Consumer 5,951,641 20,082 41,091 0 6,012,814
$ 80,940,407 $ 3,943,097 $ 4,060,498 $ 0 $88,944,002
Impaired loans by loan class are as follows:
Impaired loans by loan class
Recorded
investment in
loans ALLL
Loan class impaired Charge-offs  Allocation
2015
Real Estate $ 1,915,007 $ 0 $ 190,839
Agricultural 3,566,794 0 1,196,000
Commercial 1,299,166 0 290,161
Consumer 36,952 0 15,000
$ 6,817,919 $ 0 $1,692,000
2014
Real Estate $ 254,735 §$ 0 $ 70,000
Agricultural 41,578 0 20,000
Commercial 1,403,649 0 435,000
Consumer 51,924 0 25,000
$ 1,751,886 9 0 $ 550,000
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Note 3 Loans (continued)

Credit Quality Indicators (continued)

Interest on impaired loans collected was $263,931 and $163,486 for the year ending
December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively. Average investment in impaired loans was
$3,398,143 and $1,482,482 at December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table presents an analysis of the allowance for loan losses and off-
balance sheet loan loss with the loans’ charge-offs and recoveries by loan class.

Allowance for Loan Loss

2015 Total Real Estate  Agriculture ~Commercial Consumer Unallocated
Beginning balance,

December 31, 2014 $ 1,209,988 $ 241,998 $ 120,999 $ 241,998 $ 241,998 $ 362,995
Loans charged-off (293,575) (30,000) (8,798) (102,167) (152,610) 0
Recoveries 136,506 0 22,900 30,155 83,451 0
Provision for loan

losses and
allocation
adjustment 745,000 25 _ 1,071,491 141,358 _ (136.,655) _ (331,219)
Balance, December
31, 2015 1,797,919 212,023 1,206,592 311,344 36,184 31,776
Off-balance sheet loan
loss allocation 25,000 5,000 2,500 5,000 5,000 7,500
Total $ 1,822,919 $ 217,023 $1,209,092 $ 316,344 $ 41,184 $ 39,276
2014
Beginning balance,

December 31, 2013 $ 945286 $ 194,057 $§ 97,029 $ 194,057 $ 194,058 $ 266,085
Loans charged-off (211,801) (13,320)  (122,638) (33,354) (42,489) 0
Recoveries 101,503 13,509 0 48,328 39,666 0
Provision for loan

losses and

allocation

adjustment 375,000 47,752 146.608 32,967 50,763 96.910
Balance, December

31,2014 1,209,988 241,998 120,999 241,998 241,998 362,995

Off-balance sheet loan
loss allocation 25,000 5,000 2,500 5,000 5,000 7,500
Total $ 1234988 $ 246998 $ 123499 $ 246,998 $ 246,998 $ 370,495
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Note 3 Loans (continue'dr)'
Allowance for Loan Losses (continued)
Off-balance sheet loan loss allocation is as follows:

2015 2014

Balance, at beginning of year $ 25,000 $ 25,000
Additions (reclassification) 0 0

Balance, at the end of the year $ 25,000 $ 25,000
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Note 4 Investments

The carrying amount and fair values of the Company’s investments in securities at
December 31, 2015, and 2014, are summarized as follows:

Debt Securities available-for-sale

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized
December 31, 2015 Amortized cost  gains (losses) Eair value

US Government Agency $ 12,966 $ 43 $ 0 $ 13,009
Municipals 26,525,145 687,167 (6,488) 27,205,824
Residential Mortgage-Backed

Securities 30,622,673 250,627 (167,207) 30,706,093
Collateralized Residential

Mortgage Obligations 24,835,199 27,050 (230,179) 24,632,070

$ 81,995,983 $ 964,887 $ (403,874) $ 82,556,996

At December 31, 2015, the effective yield of Collateralized Mortgage Obligations was 1.866%.

Net unrealized gains and losses of $561,013 were included in other comprehensive income.

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized
December 31, 2014 Amortized cost gains (losses) Fair value

US Government Agency $ 116,598 $ 2830 $ 0 % 119,428
Municipals 14,721,677 560,259 0 15,281,936
Residential Mortgage-Backed

Securities 24,814,223 391,344 (43,792) 25,161,775
Collateralized Residential

Mortgage Obligations 15,510,047 56,612 (19,935) 15,546,724

$ 55162,545 $ 1,011,045 §$ (63,727) $ 56,109,863

At December 31, 2014, the effective yield of Collateralized Mortgage Obligations was 1.886%.

Net unrealized gains and losses of $947,318 were included in other comprehensive income.
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Note 4 Investments (continued)

Debt Securities held-to-maturity:

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized
December 31, 2015 Amortized cost gains (losses) Fair value

US Government Agency $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Municipals 16,603,620 311,783 (117,114) 16,798,289
Residential Mortgage-

backed Securities 0 0 0 0
Collateralized

Residential

Mortgage

Obligations 0 0 0 0

$ 16,603,620 $ 311,783 $ (117,114) $ 16,798,289
Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized
December 31, 2014 Amortized cost gains (losses) Fair value

US Government Agency $ 0 0 $ 0F % 0
Municipals 16,774,744 243,143 (206,801) 16,811,086
Residential Mortgage-

backed Securities 0 0 0 0
Collateralized Residential

Mortgage Obligations 0 0 0 0

$ 16,774,744 $ 243,143 $ (206,801) $ 16,811,086

No sales or transfers of held-to-maturity securities to available-to-sale securities were
made in 2015 or 2014. There were maturities of held-to-maturity securities in 2015 and 2014
in the amount of $75,000 and $75,000, respectively.
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Note 4 Investments (continued)

The scheduled maturities of US Government Agency, Mortgaged-Backed and
Municipals securities at December 31, 2015, were as follows:

Available-for-sale Available-for-sale
Amortized Cost  Fair Market Value

Due in one year or less $ 1,501,779 $ 1,526,304
Due from one to five years 59,521,623 59,600,775
Due from five to ten years 10,202,056 10,450,512
Due after ten years 10,770,525 10,979,405

$ 81,995,983 $ 82,556,996

Held-to-maturity  Held-to-maturity
Amortized Cost  Fair Market Value

Due in one year or less $ 50,000 $ 50,236
Due from one to five years 1,839,622 1,872,168
Due from five to ten years 6,880,543 6,996,461
Due after ten years 7,833,455 7,879,424

$ 16,603,620 $ 16,798,289

Securities may be subject to earlier call and, therefore, experience prepayment prior
to maturity.
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Note 4 Investments (continued)

The following table reflects those available-for-sale investments in a continuous unrealized
loss position for less than 12 months and for 12 months or longer at December 31, 2015.

December 31, 2015 Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Eair Value (Loss) Eair Value (Loss) Eair Value (Loss)

Collateralized Residential

Mortgage Obligations $ 21725399 $ (208,294) $ 0 $ 0 $ 21725399 $ (208,294)
(24 positions)
Municipals 2,470,270 (6,489) 0 0 2,470,270 (6,489)

(7 positions)

Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securities 16,263,105 (155,588) 0 0 16,263,105 (155,588)
(14 positions)

Collateralized Residential

Mortgage Obligations 0 0 $554,057 ($21,885) 554,057 (21,885)
(1 position)

Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securities 0 0 664,045.00 (11,619.00) 664,045 (11,619)
(1 position)

Total $ 40,458,774 $ (370,371) $ 1,218,102 $ (33,504) $ 41,676,876 $ (403,875)

The following table reflects those available-for-sale investments in a continuous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and for 12 months or longer at December 31,
2014.

December 31, 2014 Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Eair Value (Loss) Eair Value (Loss) Eair Value (Loss)

Collateralized Residential

Mortgage Obligations $ 1,798,631 $ (5,600) $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,798,631 $ (5,600)
(2 positions)
Municipals 0 0 0 0 0 0

(3 positions)
Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securities 3,694,594 (15,291) 0 0 3,694,594 (15,291)
(5 positions)
Collateralized Residential
Mortgage Obligations 0 0 668,468 (14,335) 668,468 (14,335)
(1 position)
Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securities 0 0 1,838,301 (28,501) 1,838,301 (28,501)
(3 positions)
Total $ 5493225 $  (20,891) $ 2,506,769 $  (42,836) $ 7,999,994 $ (63,727)
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Note 4 Investments (continued)

The following table reflects those held-to-maturity investments in a continuous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and for 12 months or longer at December 31,
2015.

December 31, 2015 Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Fair Value (Loss) Fair Value (Loss) Fair Value (Loss)
Municipals $ 1,932,082 $ (12,073) $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,932,082 §$ (12,073)

(3 positions)

Municipals 0 0 2,623,539 (105,041) 2,623,539 (105,041)
(5 positions)
Total $ 1,932,082 $ (12,073) $ 2,623,539 $ (105,041) $ 4,555,621 $  (117,114)

The following table reflects those held-to-maturity investments in a continuous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and for 12 months or longer at December 31,
2014.

December 31, 2014 Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities Fair Value (Loss) Fair Value (Loss) Eair Value (Loss)
Municipals $ 756,148 $ (2,829) $ 0 $ 0 $ 756,148 $ (2,829)
(3 positions)
Municipals 0 0 5,614,556 (203,972) 5,614,556 (203,972)
(12 positions)
Total $ 756,148 $ (2,829) $§ 5614,556 $ (203,972) $ 6,370,704 $ (206,801)

In estimating other-than-temporary losses, management considers (1) the length of
time and the extent to which fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and
near-term prospect of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its
investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow anticipated recovery in fair
value.

Management does not believe any of the individual unrealized losses as of December
31, 2015, represents an other-than-temporary impairment. The Company has the intent and
ability to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature.
Management further believes the value is attributable to changes in market interest rates and
not the credit quality of the issuer.

The Company uses the specific identification method for determining amortized cost.
Gross proceeds from the disposition of available-for-sale securities from sales, maturities and
calls during 2015 and 2014 amounted to $6,772,431 (sales of $4,017,431 and calls, pre-
refunded and maturities of $2,755,000) and $7,456,210 (sales of $6,051,210 and calls and
maturities of $1,330,000), respectively, not including repayments of mortgage-backed
securities.

The Company had realized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities during 2015

of ($54,390) and $288,301 during 2014 which was reclassified out of other comprehensive
income.
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Deposits

A schedule of the types and amounts of deposits held by the Company is shown
below.

2015 2014
Non-interest bearing checking $ 29,693,518 $ 20,592,405
Interest bearing checking 13,886,738 11,331,488
State and public funds 23,575,814 32,843,966
Time Deposits State and public funds 5,787,008 6,040,584
Money market 58,164,285 50,235,959
Savings 6,532,299 4,921,236
CD's over $250,000 7,951,254 14,855,509
CD's over $100,000 and less than $250,000 9,815,239 14,480,115
CD's less than $100,000 14,038,022 16,287,582
IRA's 9,507,600 9,673,373
Sweep accounts 3,130,916 3,090,685

$ 182,082,693 $ 184,352,902

The time deposit types include the following:

2015
3 months or less $ 6,741,282
3 months to 12 months 18,335,635
One year through three years 8,178,128
Three years through five years 13,844,077
$ 47,099,122

2014
3 months or less $ 6,002,642
3 months to 12 months 29,767,585
One year through three years 18,943,625
Over three years 6,623,310
$ 61,337,162

Information for the time deposit maturities by individual years for five year increments
is not available. The above information is substituted. The weighted average rate by time is
not available. The cost/yield percentage rate, at December 31, 2015, for CD’s and IRA’s was
1.3292% - 1.8120% and 1.7132% - 2.600%, respectively. The cost/yield percentage rate, at
December 31, 2014, for CD’s and IRA’s was 1.4857% - 1.7679% and 1.9812% - 2.5999%,
respectively.
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Note 5 Deposits and Securities Sold under Ké?eement to Repu}éhase (continued)
Deposits (continued)

At December 31, 2015, and 2014, the Company held deposits in accounts with
balances over $100,000 of $135,930,048 and $39,478,813, respectively. At December 31,
2015, the Company held deposits in accounts with balances over $250,000 of $99,195,321.

Securities Sold under Agreement to Repurchase. The Company has entered into
contractual agreements with certain depositors in which customer deposits in excess of target
amounts at the end of each banking day are invested in an interest in securities sold to the
customer by the Company. The securities are repurchased by the Company at the opening of
the following banking day. The repurchase price is equal to the selling price. The agreements
are generally for one year. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are classified as
secured borrowings. The agreements establish the interest rates to be received on the
repurchase agreements at 1%.

Pledged Securities. At December 31, 2015, the Company had available securities
with a fair value of $99,355,286 of which $12,303,632 secures private deposits and
$30,053,860 secures municipal deposits, leaving $56,997,794 available for other purposes.
At December 31, 2014, the Company had available securities with a fair value of $72,920,950
of which $553,736 secures the lines of credit, $9,807,262 secures private deposits and
$24,926,228 secures municipal deposits, leaving $37,633,724 available for other purposes.
The agreements appoint The Bank of Clovis Safekeeping Department or its designee as the
customers’ custodian of the underlying securities as they pertain to the agreements. All
securities are held in the name of the Company by a third party custodian. The Company
provides each customer with a report of securities pledged.

The Company has pledged both available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities at
December 31, 2015 and 2014. The allocation between available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities is not available.

Note 6 Short-term Borrowings and other Debt

The Company has established secured lines of credit from the Federal Reserve Bank.
Securities with a book value of $3,275,221 at December 31, 2015, are held in safekeeping
with the Federal Reserve which are available for pledging, but are not pledged at December
31, 2015, in the event the Company requests an advance. The Company also has an
unsecured Federal Funds Line of $5,000,000 from a correspondent bank. The correspondent
bank may, in its sole and absolute discretion, require security, upon terms satisfactory to the
correspondent bank, prior to selling fed funds to the Company. At December 31, 2015, the
Company does not have any securities pledges to the correspondent bank. At December 31,
2015, and 2014, the Company had not drawn on the lines of credit.

The Company has established credit lines with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB).
Advances are secured by granting to the FHLB a security interest in first mortgage loans,
other qualified loans, deposit accounts, other real estate related collateral, securities and
FHLB stock. Under FHLB guidelines, the Company's total available credit line at December
31, 2015, was $40,318,600 of which $40,318,600 was available at December 31, 2015. The
Company had not drawn on the line of credit at December 31, 2015.
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Note 6 Short-term Borrbwings and other Debt (continﬁed)

The Federal Home Land Bank (FHLB) holds a blanket lien that does not require
segregating or delivery of collateral, so long as the Company complies with the statutory and
regulatory capital standards and all underwriting standards as determined by the FHLB. Sale
or encumbrance of pledged assets in the ordinary course of business are automatically
released, so long as the Company maintains the required level of collateral. Pledged
collateral has not been separately identified on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Condition.

The Company is obligated for a mortgage secured by real estate contiguous to its main
banking facility. Mortgage payable at December 31, 2015, at an interest rate of 5.5% is as
follows:

Principal Interest
2016 $ 8042 $ 2,758
2017 8,496 2,304
2018 8,975 1,825
2019 9,482 1,318
2020 10,016 784
2021 8,778 222

$ 53,789 § 9,211

Note 7 Restrictions on Dividends, Loans and Advances

The Company's primary source of cash is dividends from the Bank. Federal and state
banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans or advances made
by the Bank to the Company. The payment of dividends is limited by the requirement to
maintain adequate capital pursuant to the capital adequacy guidelines.

The Company paid dividends of $445,844 to its shareholders in 2015 and $418,822 in
2014.

Loans or advances to one borrower are generally limited to 35 percent of the Bank's
capital stock and surplus on a secured basis.

Note 8 Commitments and Legal Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has various outstanding
commitments that are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. Among these
commitments are certain restrictions agreed to by the Company with the FDIC to secure
insurance of deposit accounts to include: maintenance of certain capital ratios, an adequate
allowance for loan losses, maintenance of adequate fidelity coverage, and to notify the FDIC
of any material changes in the operation of the Company.

In the normal course of business, the Company is at all times subject to various
pending and threatened litigation. Management presently believes the ultimate resolution of
such issues that might arise will not have an adverse effect on the financial condition or the
results of operations.
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Note 9 Income Taxes

Income taxes at December 31, 2015, and 2014, are as follows:

2015 2014
Current Provision Federal income taxes $ 444,573 $ 530,766
State income taxes 96,429 116,847

541,002 647,613

Deferred Income Taxes Federal (323,614) (199,556)
State (56,156)  (33,925)
(379,770) (233,481)

Total $ 161,232 $ 414,132

The Company files a consolidated income tax return. Current and deferred income
taxes are allocated to members of the group based on the income tax liability or benefit as if
each company filed a tax return on its separate income. Intercompany transaction amounts of
$69,680 for income taxes reflected as receivable by the Parent Company, from the Bank
Subsidiary, are eliminated for purposes of consolidated financial statements in 2015.

Income Tax Positions. The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards
Board ASC 740-10 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. The Company believes that
it has appropriate support for the income tax positions to be taken on its tax returns and that
its accrual for tax liabilities are adequate for open years based on an assessment of many
factors, including past experience and interpretation of the tax law.

The Company's federal and state of New Mexico income tax returns for the most
recent 3 years are routinely subject to examination by the tax authorities. The Company has
not been notified of any pending examination.

Deferred Income Taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31,
2015, and 2014, reflect the temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the basis of such assets and liabilities measured by
current enacted tax laws.
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Deferred Income Taxes (continued)

The components of the net deferred tax asset included in other assets are as follows:

2015 2014

Deferred Tax Assets:

Bad debt deduction $ 643,661 $ 405,144

Non-qualified stock option plan 21,318 21,206

Unrealized loss on AFS securities 47,764 0

SERP retirement plan 294,961 189,741
Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,007,704 616,091
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation differences 93,098 129,019

Unrealized gain on AFS securities 271,608 376,843
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 364,706 505,862
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) $ 642,998 $ 110,229

Differences in Effective Tax Rates. The total income tax expense for 2015 and 2014
were different than the amounts computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rates
as follows:

2015 2014

Income taxes (refundable) at statutory rate $ 643,715 $ 790,454
Increases and (decreases) resulting from:

Effect of New Mexico income taxes (32,788) (39,728)
Permanent differences:

Municipal bond interest (325,083) (293,024)

Other differences 2,200 2,386

Life insurance (51,800) (53,022)

20% Disallowed Municipal Interest 14,150 13,604
Timing differences:

Depreciation differences 30,939 6,513

Bad debt deduction 202,206 85,741

Post retirement benefit plan 89,174 97,948

Stock options 982 (5,417)

Deferred income tax (129,122) (74,695)
Federal income taxes 444,573 530,760
New Mexico income taxes 96,429 116,853

Total current income taxes $ 541,002 $ 647,613
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Note 10 Related Party Transactions ;

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to current
Officers and Directors and their affiliates with the same terms as other borrowers. Loans to
current Officers and Directors and their affiliates are as follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year $ 546,362 $ 461,570
New loans 284,762 146,775
Repayments (215,359) (61,983)
Balance, end of year $ 615765 $ 546,362

Deposits from current Officers and Directors and their affiliates held by the Company
at December 31, 2015, and 2014, amounted to $5,885,694 and $7,464,756, respectively.

A director had deposits in excess of 5% of capital totaling $4,012,328 on December
31, 2015.

No directors had loans in excess of 5% of capital on December 31, 2015.
Other Related Party Transactions

The Company required roof repairs and hired a company that is owned by an
immediate family member of a director. Payments of $96,786 were made to this company
during the 2014 year and none in 2015.

Note 11 Treasury Stock

The Company's stock is subject to a restrictive stock agreement which requires
shareholders desiring to sell their shares to first offer the shares to the Company. The Board
of Directors establishes a market in the Company’s shares through a standing offer to redeem
shares. The Board reviews the offering price, based on a ratio of the book value, each
quarter. The offering price was $27 per share at December 31, 2015, and $26 per share at
December 31, 2014. Treasury shares are accounted for on the first-in, first-out basis at cost.
The Company is not obligated to repurchase shares.

Note 12 Stock Option Plans

The Company provides an incentive and non-qualified stock option plan for certain
key employees which was approved by the stockholders in 2000 and amended in 2011 and a
separate, non-qualified stock option plan for its' Directors which was approved by the
shareholders in 2005.

The incentive stock option plan limits the total options which may be granted to a total
of 80,915 shares. The exercise price is determined by a committee of outside Directors, but
may not be less than the fair market value of the shares on the date of the grant (110% in the
case of grants to a 10% shareholder). Incentive stock options are exercisable no more rapidly
than in consecutive annual installments of 20% of the total number of shares originally
covered by the grant.
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Note 12 Stock Option Plans (éontinued)

The non-qualified stock option plan provides options for 12,000 shares to the
Company Directors (all of which have been exercised as of December 31, 2014). The option
price is determined by a Committee of the Board of Directors and may not be less than the fair
market value of the shares on the date of the grant.

All options are granted for a maximum period of 10 years. The options are
nontransferable, except by laws of descent and subject to other restrictions.

No options were granted in 2015 or 2014. The fair value of options granted is
estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the
following assumptions: the expected term to exercise is 10 years; the expected volatility has
been estimated at 4%; the risk-free rate of return, based on US Treasury's zero coupon rate.
Because these derived values cannot be substantiated by independent markets, values may

vary.

The Company recognizes stock based compensation pursuant to Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) topic 718-10, Compensation - Stock Compensation.

A summary of the option activity as of December 31, 2015, is as follows:

Weighted
Non- Weighted Average
Incentive Qualified Average Remaining
Options Option Exercise Contractual
Options Shares Shares Price Term (years)
Outstanding, December 31, 2014 42,296 29,404
Granted 0 0
Forfeited 0 0
Exercised-Incentive 0 0
Exercised-Non-qualified 0 0
Outstanding, December 31, 2015,
Incentive 42,296 $ 25.22 7.0
Outstanding, December 31, 2015,
Nonqualified 29,404 $ 20.25 3.8

The aggregate intrinsic value of 52,500 shares exercisable at December 31, 2015, is
$253,976 and the weighted-average exercise price is $22.19.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested shares as of December 31,
2015, is as follows:

Option

Nonvested Options Shares
Nonvested, January 1, 2015 29,200
Granted 0
Vested 10,300
Forfeited or expired 0

Nonvested, December 31, 2015 18,900

Aggregate intrinsic value of nonvested shares at December 31, 2015, was $19,764.

Compensation was recognized in 2015 and 2014 of $2,887 and $5,522, respectively.
The Company does not recognize a tax benefit from incentive stock options except for
premature dispositions of exercised options by employees. In 2014, exercise of nonqualified
stock options resulted in a benefit, net of tax, of $12,264.

In 2014, 3,000 option shares were exercised for $40,890. The intrinsic value of
options exercised was $31,110.

At December 31, 2015, $2,015 had not been recognized as compensation cost
related to nonvested share-based compensation plans. That cost is expected to be recognized
over a 3 year period. The fair value of shares vested during the years ended 2015 and 2014
was $278,100 and $293,800, respectively. The total fair value of all vested shares for years
ending December 31, 2015, and 2014, was $1,425,600 and $1,105,000, respectively.

Note 13 Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
the federal agencies (banking regulations require the determination of regulatory capital for
the bank subsidiary, rather than the holding company until assets exceed $500 million).
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
effect on the Company's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components,
risk weightings and other factors.

To ensure the adequacy of the Company’s capital, minimum amounts and ratios, as
reflected in the accompanying schedule, are defined in the regulations. Failure to meet the
minimum capital requirements can initiate actions by the regulators that could have a material
effect on the financial statements. Management believes that the Company meets all capital
adequacy requirements at December 31, 2015.
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The most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Company as well
capitalized under the regulatory requirements for prompt corrective action. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the
Company'’s category.

Effective January 1, 2015, the FDIC adopted changes to its existing risk-based and
leverage capital rules and the measurement of risk-weighted assets. Key changes in the
capital requirements are as follows:

e Revision of regulatory capital definitions and minimum ratios
e Changes in the definition of Tier 1 capital to include two components:
Common equity Tier 1 capital
Additional Tier 1 capital
e Adds a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio
Implements a capital conservation buffer
Revises the Prompt Correction Action (PCA) amounts and adds the new ratio
to the PCA framework
e Changes the risk weighting for certain assets and off-balance sheet items

The Company’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the accompanying table
along with the requirements for adequate capital.
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Capital Requirements

Adequately
(in thousands) Actual Capitalized Well Capitalized
Capital Capital Capital
December 31, 2015 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total capital (to risk
weighted assets) $ 23,020 248% $ 7,430 > 8% $ 9,287 >10%
Tier 1 capital (to risk
weighted assets) $ 21,851 235% $ 5,572 >6% $ 7429 > 8%
Tier 1 leverage ratio
capital (to average
assets) $ 21,851 103% $ 8452 >4% $ 10,565 >5%

Common Equity Tier 1
risk-based capital (to
risk weighted assets) $ 21,851 23.5% $ 4179 >4.5% $ 6,037 >6.5%

Minimum to be well
capitalized under

Minimum capital prompt corrective
Actual requirement action provisions
December 31, 2014 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total capital (to risk
weighted assets) $ 22,469 259% $ 6,934 > 8% $ 8,668 >10%
Tier 1 capital (to risk
weighted assets) $ 21,384 247% $ 3,467 >4% $ 5,201 >6%
Tier 1 capital (to
average assets) $ 21,384 99% $ 8,664 > 4% $ 10,830 >5%
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Capital Ratio Phase-in

The following table reflects the phase-in of capital requirements over the next five years:

Year, as of January 1, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Common equity Tier 1
capital conservation
buffer N/A 0.625% 1.25% 1.875% 2.5%

Minimum common

equity Tier 1 capital

ratio 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
Minimum common

equity Tier 1 capital

ratio plus capital

conservation buffer 4.5% 5.125% 5.75% 6.375% 7.0%
Minimum Tier 1 capital

ratio 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%
Minimum Tier 1 capital

ratio plus capital

conservation buffer N/A 6.625% 7.25% 7.875% 8.5%
Minimum total capital
ratio 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%

Minimum total capital
ratio plus capital
conservation buffer N/A 8.625% 9.25% 9.875% 10.5%

Capital Conservation Buffer

In addition to the minimum risk-based capital requirements, a new capital
conservation buffer of least 2.5 percent of total risk-weighted assets is included in the
regulatory capital requirements beginning in 2016. The capital conservation buffer of common
equity Tier 1 capital in an amount greater than 2.5 percent of total risk-weighted assets is
required to avoid limits on dividends and discretionary bonus payments to executive officers.

Note 14 Off-Balance Sheet Activities, Commitments and Contingencies

Credit-Related Financial Instruments. The Company is a party to credit-related
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend
credit and commercial letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the Statement
of Financial Condition.
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Note 14 Off-Balance Sheet Aétivities, Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Credit-Related Financial Instruments (continued)

The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of
these commitments. The Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments
as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. Because commitments to extend credit are
generally subject to expiration within one year, management believes any market risk is
minimal. Management provides an allowance for off-balance sheet risk using similar methods
as discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements for the allowance for loan losses.

At December 31, 2015, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose
contract amounts represent credit risk:

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit $ 7,124,649
Commercial letters of credit 0

Allowance for off-balance sheet loss allocation (25,000)
$ 7,099,649

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there
is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Commitments may be negotiated at fixed or variable rates. The commitments for equity lines
of credit may expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitment amounts do
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if it is
deemed necessary by the Company, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
customer.

Commercial letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily
issued to support borrowing arrangements. Essentially, all letters of credit issued have
expiration dates within one year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers. The Company
generally holds collateral supporting those commitments if deemed necessary.

Concentrations of Credit Risk. The majority of the Company’s loans, commitments
to extend credit and standby letters of credit are within the lending area of Clovis, New
Mexico, and surrounding communities. A major economic driver of the lending area is
Cannon Air Force Base. The ability of borrowers, directly or indirectly, associated with
contracts from the Base to satisfy their obligations may be dependent upon continued funding
of the Base. The Company maintains a diverse loan portfolio as reflected in Note 3 to the
financial statements.

Other Concentrations. At December 31, 2015, and 2014, the Company held
withdrawable deposits of a local government in the amount of $15,976,850 and $26,976,492,
respectively.
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Note 15 Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Codification ASC 820, Disclosures
about Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, defines fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value and requires certain disclosures about fair value measurements, even
when those fair values are not recognized in the financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement. Fair value measurement is defined as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820 provides for a hierarchy of grouping
assets and liabilities based on the best information available for discovery of the price or
measurement in the market. The hierarchy will group assets and liabilities into three levels
based on the markets in which assets and liabilities are exchanged and the reliability of the
assumptions used to determine fair value. Greater reliance is placed on observable inputs
than on other methods of price discovery. The fair value hierarchy is defined as follows:

Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active
markets.

Level 2 - Valuation is based on quoted market prices for similar instruments in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-
based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3 - Valuation is generated from significant assumptions not observable in the market.
Unobserved assumptions reflect management's judgment of estimates of assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the assets or liability. Valuation techniques include
primarily assumptions about market values of similar properties or securities, typically based
on prior appraisals, particularly as related to foreclosed real estate held for sale. Discounted
cash flow models and similar methods may also be used.

Management's policy is to use observable market prices whenever possible; however,
unobservable methods are necessary when market prices are not available. The present
value techniques used when market prices are not available are significantly affected by
assumptions of the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Independent sources for
market valuations are used whenever possible. While management believes the Company’s
valuation methods are appropriate, derived values which may be necessary for unobservable
methods cannot be substantiated by independent markets and may not be realized in
immediate settlement of the instruments.

Financial Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis. The following is a
description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value
in the books of account on both a recurring and nonrecurring basis. There were no transfers
between measurement levels during the year.

Securities available-for-sale

Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value using the Level 2 methodology on
a recurring basis. Fair value is determined by Interactive Data Corporation’s and Bloomberg's
valuation services, independent firms nationally recognized by the financial services industry,
whose methods and assumptions are reasonable in the judgment of management.
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Financial Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis, continued

Impaired Loans

When management determines a loan is impaired, an allowance for loan losses is
provided, typically based on the appraisal of collateral when the loan was originated or a
current appraisal, if available. Management may obtain a new appraisal or estimate the
collateral value using available market information and observations of the condition of
collateral, as well as other factors. For the current year, all impaired loans were classified as
Level 3, as current appraisals were not readily available and, therefore, fair value was based
on management's best judgment using available information.

Foreclosed Assets and Repossessed Assets

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed
assets and are, subsequently, carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value requiring
adjustments on a nonrecurring basis.

Foreclosed commercial properties and business loans often present unique valuation
situations even when appraisals are available. While the Company generally has appraisals
of the properties, management also uses their best judgment from all available information,
including the condition of the property, the estimated market opportunities for sale of the
property, within management’s time frame as well as the appraisal in determining fair value.
Management generally intends to sell foreclosed properties within one year. These assets
are, therefore, classified as Level 3.

Fair value of repossessed property is based on independent market appraisals or

referral to market pricing services for tangible personal property, if available. Repossessed
personal property is, therefore, classified as Level 2.
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Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2015, and 2014,

are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Assets:
Securities available-for-sale

US Government Agency

Municipals

Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securities

Collateralized Residential
Mortgage Obligations

December 31, 2014

Assets:
Securities available-for-sale
US Government Agency
Municipals
Residential Mortgage-Backed
Securities

Collateralized Residential
Mortgage Obligations

Total

13,009
27,205,824

30,706,094
24,632,070

Level 1

Level 2

13,009
27,205,824

30,706,094
24,632,070

82,556,996

82,556,996

Total

119,428
15,281,936

25,161,775

15,546,724

Level 1

Level 2

119,428
15,281,936

25,161,775

15,546,724

56,109,863

56,109,863
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Financial Assets Recorded at Fair Value

on a Nonrecurring Basis

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2015, and

2014, are as follows:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2015
Assets:
Impaired loans $ 6,817,919 $ 0 $ 0 $ 6,817,919
Less: Allowance for loan loss (1,692,000) 0 0 (1,692,000)
Net impaired loans 5,125,919 0 0 5,125,919
Foreclosed properties 663,962 0 0 663,962
Repossessed properties 0 0 0 0
Total Assets $ 5,789,881 $ 0 $ 0 $ 5,789,881
December 31, 2014
Assets:
Impaired loans $ 1,751,886 $ 0% 0 $ 1,751,886
Less: Allowance for loan loss (550,000) 0 0 (550,000)
Net impaired loans 1,201,886 0 0 1,201,886
Foreclosed properties 0 0 0 0
Repossessed properties 2,004 0ig 2,004 0
Total Assets $ 1,203,890 $ 0 9 2,004 $ 1,201,886
The following table represents changes in nonrecurring fair value for Level 3 assets.
Impaired Foreclosed
December 31, 2015 Total Loans Assets
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 1,201,886 $ 1,201,886 $ 0
Gains or (losses) included in earnings 0 0 0
Increase (decrease) in allowance for loan loss (1,142,000) (1,142,000) 0
Gross reductions (355,750) (355,750) 0
Gross additions 6,085,745 5,421,783 663,962
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 5,789,881 $ 5125919 $ 663,962
December 31, 2014
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 1229217 % 898,078 $ 331;1389
Gains or (losses) included in earnings 0 0 0
Increase (decrease) in allowance for loan loss (235,000) (235,000) 0
Gross reductions (922,409) (591,270) (331,139)
Gross additions 1,130,078 1,130,078 0
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 1,201,886 $ 1,201,886 $ 0
No transfers of Level 3 financial assets were made to or from other Levels.
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Financial Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis (continued)

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments Not Reported on a Recurring or Non-
recurring Basis

ASC 825 requires disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments. The
accompanying schedule presents disclosure of the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including those financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured and
reported at fair value on a recurring basis or non-recurring basis. The total fair values
presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company.

Assumptions and methods used by the Company in estimating fair values of its other
financial instruments are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, accrued interest receivable and payable

These assets and liabilities are carried at historical cost which approximates
fair value because of the relatively short time between the origination of the
instruments and expected realization and are classified as Level 1. These assets
include cash, due from banks and federal funds sold.

Loans

Loans are not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis, but are recorded as
discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements. For purposes of fair value disclosures,
fair value was determined by an independent firm using present value techniques
management believes to be sound. These techniques differentiate loans based on
the type of loan (i.e. real estate, commercial, etc.), maturity, fixed and variable rates,
and current rate of the loans using discount rates that reflect current rates for loans
with similar characteristics and remaining maturity and are classified as Level 3.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Fair value of demand and time deposits of less than one year and daily sales
of securities under agreements to repurchase are reflected at carrying values and
valued as Level 1. For purposes of disclosure of fair value of financial instruments,
present value techniques were employed by an independent firm using techniques
management believes are sound. Deposits with similar characteristics (with maturities
of more than one year), including maturity, interest rate and type of deposit, are
grouped in which discount rates are applied that reflect current rates for similar
deposits to determine fair value at Level 2.

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost, adjusted for other
than temporary impairment, if any. For purposes of fair value disclosure of financial
instruments, securities are measured by an independent firm using methods and
assumptions that are reasonable in the judgment of management. Held-to-maturity
securities are classified as Level 2.
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Financial Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis (continued)

Fair value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments at December
31, 2015, and 2014, are summarized as follows (fair values reflect financial instruments of the
banking subsidiary only, fair values of financial instruments of the parent corporation are not

available):
Estimated Fair
Value
Carrying Cost (in
December 31, 2015 (in thousands) thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Instruments, not recorded on
a recurring or nonrecurring basis
Cash and due from banks $ 12,521 $ 12,521 $§ 12,521 §$ 0 $ 0
Held-to-maturity securities 16,604 16,798 0 16,798 0
Loans and SBA loan guarantee
receivable 90,326 95,411 0 0 95,411
Less: Loan Loss Reserve and 1.798 17 1.798
unearned income (1,798) {1,798) 0 0 (1,798)
Net Loans 88,528 93,613 0 0 93,613
Total Financial Instruments $ 117,653 $ 122,932 $ 12,521 $ 16,798 $ 187,226
Financial Liabilities
Demand Deposits $ 53,185 $ 53,185 $ 53,185 $ 0 $ 0
Savings and Certificates of Deposit 128,966 130,021 0 130,021 0
Securities sold under Agreement
to Repurchase 4,887 4,887 4,887 0
Total Financial Liabilities $ 187,038 $ 188,093 $ 58,072 $ 130,021 $
December 31, 2014
Financial Instruments, not recorded on a
recurring or nonrecurring basis
Cash and due from banks $ 59,047 $ 59,047 $ 59,047 $ 0 $ 0
Held-to-maturity securities 16,775 16,811 0 16,811 0
Loans 89,166 94,219 0 0 94,219
Less: Loan Loss Reserve and
unearned income (1,210) (1,210 0 0 (1,210)
Net Loans 87,956 93,009 0 0 93,009
Total Financial Instruments $ 163,778 $ 168,867 $ 59,047 $ 16,811 $ 186,018
Financial Liabilities
Demand Deposits $ 53,249 $ 53,249 $ 53249 § 0 $ 0
Savings and Certificates of Deposit 131,104 132,392 0 132,392 0
Securities sold under Agreement
to Repurchase 21,081 21,081 21,081 0 0
Total Financial Liabilities $ 205,434 $ 206,722 $ 74330 $ 132,392 $ 0
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Note 16 Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets
has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1)
the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the

transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Note 17 Other Comprehensive Income

The components and changes to other comprehensive income at December 31, 2015,
and 2014, are as follows:

Unrealized Gains on Securities: 2015
Tax effect

Securities Available-for-Sale: Before tax (benefit)  Net of tax
Unrealized gains (loss) Agencies $ 2,786 $ (1,108) $ 1,678
Unrealized gains (loss) Municipals (120,420) 48,719 (71,701)
Unrealized gains (loss) Mortgage-

Backed Securities 264,132 (104,970) 159,162
Unrealized gains (loss) Collateralized

Mortgage Obligations 239,806 (95,639) 144,167

Net unrealized gains (loss) on

Securities $ 386,304 $ (152,998) $ 233,306
2014
Tax effect
Before tax (benefit) Net of tax
Unrealized gains (loss) Agencies $ 2781 % (1,107)=% 1,674
Unrealized gains (loss) Municipals (33,148) 11,071 (22,077)
Unrealized gains (loss) Mortgage-
Backed Securities 231,217 (92,392) 138,825
Unrealized gains (loss) Collateralized
Mortgage Obligations (61) (107) (168)

Net unrealized gains (loss) on Securities ~ $ 200,789 $ (82,535) $ 118,254
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Note 17 Other Comprehensive Income (édntinued)

The cumulative components of other comprehensive income for available-for-sale
securities measured at Level 2 are as follows:

Mortgage- Collateralized

Backed Mortgage
Agencies Municipals Securities Obligations Total

Net unrealized (gains) losses

(net of tax), December 31,

2013 $ 29 $§ 359,464 $ 70,472 $ 22,256 $ 452,221
Transfers of realized (gains)

losses to net income (net of tax) 0 (168,751) (4,518) 0 (173,269)
Increase in net unrealized

(gains) losses, (net of tax) 1,675 146,675 143,342 (169) 291,523
Net Change 1,675 (22,076) 138,824 (169) 118,254
Net unrealized (gains) losses

(net of tax), December 31,

s 1,704 337,388 209,296 22,087 570,475
Transfers of realized (gains)

losses to net income 0 1,883 74,209 0 76,092
Increase in net unrealized

faas) lowams, inet ST IK) (1,678) 69,817  (233,370)  (144,167)  (309,398)
Net Change (1,678) 71,700 (159,161) (144,167) (233,306)
Net unrealized (gains)

losses (net of tax),

December 31, 2015 $ 26 $ 409,08 $ 50,135 $ (122,080) $ 337,169

Net realized gain from available-for-sale securities measured at Level 2 reclassified to
net income (loss) was ($54,390) for December 31, 2015, and was $288,301 for 2014.

Note 18 Trust Department

During 2002, the Company began providing trust services. As of May 31, 2015, the
Trust Department was closed. Revenues and expenses of the Trust Department are
recognized on the Company’s financial statements through the closing date. Income from the
Trust Department was $3,457 and $6,466 for the years 2015, and 2014, respectively. New
Mexico law governing Trust Companies require a minimum capital of $150,000. The capital of
the Company exceeds the minimum requirement.
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Note “VI»§WEmponee Benefits

The Company has established a 401(K) plan covering substantially all employees who

meet minimum age and service requirements. Contributions to the plan were $93,547 in
2015, and $76,886 in 2014.

The Company provided a high deductible ($5,000) health insurance policy for
participating employees for a portion of 2014. Out-of-pocket medical costs of participating
employees for in-network covered medical costs, other than certain deductibles and co-pays,
are reimbursed by the Company. Medical costs reimbursed to employees was $45,969 during
2014. The plan was terminated during 2014.

The Company also provides substantially all of its full-time employees a “flexible
spending account”. The Company contributes $100 per month per employee into an account
which may be accumulated and used by the employee for reimbursement of qualified health
expenses, not otherwise covered by health insurance. The cost to the Company for 2015, and
2014, respectively, was $28,892 and $28,780.

In 2013, the Company adopted nonqualified defined contribution and defined benefit
plans to attract and retain key officers. The nonqualified defined contribution plan provides
post-retirement benefits at normal retirement age of 65. Benefits vest at 10% per year which
may be payable upon separation of service before age 65. Company contributions to the
defined contribution plan for 2015 and 2014, net of the deferred taxes, was $120,753 and
$169,342, respectively. Contributions to the plan are based on annual financial performance
criteria established by the Board of Directors. Participants do not make contributions. The
defined benefit plan provides a fixed benefit of $640,000, at normal retirement age of 65,
payable over 20 years. Benefits vest based on an accrued benefit formula. Contributions to
the plan for 2015 and 2014, net of deferred income taxes, were $37,192 and $25,019,
respectively. The discount rate used to estimate the present value of future pension
obligations is 3.74%, based on the Citibank Pension Discount Curve as of December 1, 2014.
The nonqualified plans are unfunded and are reflected as a liability of the Company in the
financial statements. No benefits were paid from the plan in 2014 or 2015, nor does the
Company anticipate paying benefits over the next 5 years. Benefits payable beyond 5 years
have not been determined.

Note 20 Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Company has invested in key man life insurance policies on the lives of certain
officers and key bank employees, to recognize the contributions of the key employees to the
Company and to retain their services. The life insurance policies are also investments, which
provide a tax deferred return to the Company. In the event of the death of an insured
employee, the employee’s beneficiaries receive the proceeds of the policy, less the cash
surrender value of the policy which is paid to the Company. The Company has the right at
any time to surrender the policy for its cash value. The annual cost of the insurance is shared
by the Company and the employee which management anticipates will be paid from the
investment earnings. Earnings from the policies recognized in other income for 2015 and
2014 amounted to $152,354 and $157,240, respectively.
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Note 21 Foreclosed and Reposséssed Assets

Change in foreclosed and repossessed assets:

Commercial
Repossessed Foreclosed
December 31, 2015 Total Assets Assets
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 2,004 $ 2,004 $ 0
Sale of assets (316,014) (69,014) (247,000)
Additions 977,972 67,010 910,962
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 663,962 $ 0 $ 663,962
December 31, 2014
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 332,704 $ 1,565 $ 331:139
Sale of assets (624,674) (1,565) (623,109)
Additions 293,974 2,004 291,970
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 2004 $ 2004 $ 0

The Company has obtained physical possession of all foreclosed and repossessed
assets. There is no allowance for loss on repossessed assets and other real estate owned.

Note 22 Service Organization Conversion Costs Recoverable

Prior to 2014, the Company used a service organization and three other vendors to
provide technology services for bookkeeping software, internet banking and other services.
For some time, management had concerns regarding the four vendors’ coordination of their
services and maintaining current technology to meet the increasing complexity of the banking
industry to  better serve customers in the competitive banking environment. As a result of
these concerns, the Company had been considering other alternatives. However, because
of significant fees required to terminate current vendor agreements, the Company chose not to
engage another service provider.

In 2014, after an extensive selection process, the Company selected a single vendor
who was capable of providing all the services the Company required, and whom management
and the Board believed offered the latest technology to enable the Company to comply with
regulatory requirements and to provide industry leading services to its customers. In addition
to the capabilities of the service provider and the service provider’s software, a critical factor in
management’s decision to convert to a new system remained the cost of termination fees.
Management did not believe a conversion was possible until the expiration of current
contracts.

However, the vendor selected agreed to reimburse the Company for termination fees

incurred with the other vendors, through a combination of cash payment and discounted costs
in consideration for a 10 year contract.
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Note 22 Service Orga_ﬁ’i‘zAé‘t‘ion Conversion Costs Recoverable (Continued) e

Termination fees paid by the Company in 2014 to all terminated vendors amounted to
$605,574, all of which the selected vendor agreed to reimburse to the Company through cash
payment and discounted software and service costs over the 10 year life of the contract. The
fair value of the discounted software and services was discounted to present value by
application of the risk-free 10 year US Treasury rate of 2.53% over the 10 year period of the
contract.

The Company has recorded the transaction as the present value of the contractual
recoverable fees receivable of $605,574. The recoverable fees receivable, net of current cash
amounts receivable, have been amortized using the risk-free rate initially used to measure
receivable. Amortization for 2015 and 2014, amounted to $45,480 and $18,613, respectively.
Recoverable fees at December 31, 2015, and 2014, were $441,481 and $486,961,
respectively.

Note 23 SBA Loan Guarantee Receivable

In 2015, the Company foreclosed a loan guaranteed by the Small Business
Administration (SBA) and filed a claim for the amount of the loss expected to be recovered
from the guaranty. The Company charged-off the unguaranteed portion in the amount of
$30,000. Foreclosed property related to the foreclosed loan in the amount of $663,692
continues to be held by the Company at the request of the SBA. If the foreclosed real estate
is unable to be liquidated at the recorded amount, the Company will file further claims
pursuant to the loan guarantee agreement. Therefore, depending on the ultimate realization
of the foreclosed real estate, the Company’s claim, and further losses of any unguaranteed
portion of liquidation proceeds will be assessed by management as more information
becomes available.
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Note 24 Parent Company Financial Information

Condensed financial information related to Clovis Bancshares, Inc. as of December

31, 2015, and 2014, and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and 2014, is as follows:

Condensed Balance Sheet

ASSETS
Cash
Investment in subsidiary
Due from subsidiary
Land
Building, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deferred insurance proceeds
Note payable
Total Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock and additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

2015 2014

67,969 §$ 292,960
22,188,880 21,954,511
69,680 81,340
21,600 21,600
77.410 66,946
22,425,539 $ 22,417,357
25,660 $ 0

0 13,317

53,789 61,400
79,449 74,717
13,829,566 13,851,789
10,020,768 9,114,331
(1,841,413) (1,193,955)
337,169 570,475
22,346,090 22,342,640
22,425,539 §$ 22,417,357
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Note 24 Parent Co'mﬂﬁawny Financial Information (contiﬁuéd)

Condensed Statement of Income

Cash dividends received from subsidiary bank
Rental income

Interest expense

Operating expense

Net income before provision of income tax
Income tax benefit net deferred tax expense
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary

Net income, before dividends paid

Retained earnings, beginning of the year
Dividends

Retained earnings, end of the year

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Net income

Net unrealized holding gains (loss) on securities arising
during the year

Reclassification adjustments included in net income

Other comprehensive income (loss) before deferred income
tax (benefit)

Deferred income tax benefit

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of deferred income
tax benefit

Comprehensive income

2015 2014
$ 1,000,000 $ 850,000
6,800 10,200
(3,187) (3,594)
(185,802) (196,578)
817,811 660,028
69,680 81,340
464,787 915,005

1,352,278 1,656,373

9,114,331 7,876,780
445,844 418,822

$ 10,020,765 $ 9,114,331

2015 2014

$ 1,352,278 $ 1,656,373

(462,397) 374,058
76,092 (173,269)
(386,305) 200,789
152,999 (82,535)
(233,306) 118,254

$ 1,118,972 § 1,774,627
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Note 24 Pa'réhtWCompany Financial Information (ddﬁfinued)

Condensed Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in undistributed earnings of
subsidiary
Stock option compensation
(Increase) decrease in income taxes currently payable and
deferred income taxes
Depreciation
Increase (decrease) in other comprehensive income
Insurance proceeds (use) of proceeds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of building improvements

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments of dividends
Principal payments on loan to purchase building
Sale of common stock, net
Sale of treasury stock, net of acquisition of treasury stock

Net cash (used) in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

015 2014

$ 1,352,278 $ 1,656,373

(234,369) (1,038,780)

2,887 23,632
11,660 (4,221)
1,883 1,870
(233,306) 118,254
(13,317) (96,786)
25,663 0
913,379 660,342
(12,347)
(12,347)

(445,844)  (418,822)

(7,611) (7,206)
0 0
(672,568) (68,752)

(1,126,023) (494,780)

(224,991) 165,562
292,960 127,398

$ 67,969 $ 292,960
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Note 25 Earnings' Per Share

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

2015 2014
Net income $ 1,352,281 $ 1,656,373
Weighted-average shares outstanding 738,288 760,707
Weighted-average effect of dilutive stock options 745,881 766,531
Basic earnings per share $ 183 $ 2.18
Diluted earnings per share $ 181 $ 216

Note 26 Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 10, 2016, which is the date
financial statements were available to be issued.

55
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Schedules I, II, IIT and IV
December 31, 2015, and 2014

2014
Schedule |
Interest income
Loans $ 5,530,784
Investments 1,679,493
Total Interest income $ 7,210,277
Schedule Il
Interest expense
Savings $ 1,135,876
Repurchase agreement 56,786
Other interest 3,594
Total Interest expense $ 1,196,256
Schedule llI
Noninterest income
Fees $ 454,748
Service charges 378,880
Life insurance - cash value increase 157,240
Miscellaneous income 24,726
Rent income 10,200
Realized gain on sale of OREO 0
Realized gain (loss) on sale of available-for-sale
securities (Note 17) __ 288301
Total Noninterest income $ 1,314,095
Schedule IV
Noninterest expense
Director, Officer and employee benefits and compensatio $ 2,806,106
Other general and administrative expenses 677,247
Data support, ATM, deposits and check processing 487,482
Advertising and promotion 226,791
Director fees 234,400
Depreciation 205,356
FDIC and exam fees 112,467
Occupancy expense 132,762
Total Noninterest expense $ 4,882,611

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

Clovis Bancshares, Inc.
Historical Schedule of Book Value and Dividends
December 31, 2015 through 2000

Total Stockholders'
Equity

Common
Shares
Outstanding

Book Value
per Common
Share

Dividends Paid

22,342,635
21,040,394
20,650,405
20,455,714
12,247,518
12,329,353
10,593,521
9,335,134
8,032,166
7,055,295
6,692,059
6,223,155
5,635,788
3,925,929

3,945,999

751,277
758,494
113,299
783,204
507,784
522,454
499,188
506,162
508,274
516,549
521,064
521,064
510,824
409,150

409,150

29.50

27.74

26.70

26.12

2412

23.60

21.22

18.44

15.80

13.66

12.84

11.94

11.03

9.60

9.64

418,822

0
778,252
253,390
260,124
209,301
150,154
101,377

25,519

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Clovis Bancshares, Inc
FDIC Disclosure Statement

December 31, 2015

This statement has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy or relevance,
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Bank of Clovis
Randy Harris, President

Please direct all inquiries to:

The Bank of Clovis
Attn: Jennifer Whitlock
300 Main Street
Clovis, NM 88101
(575)769-9000
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